
 

 

June 23, 2025                                           Our file: A-2024-0034 
                

 
By Email 
 
Dear : 
 
This letter is in response to your requests dated February 17, 2025, to obtain 
the following: 
 
“The ScienceUpFirst initiative was cofounded in 2020 by law professor 
Timothy Caulfield and Senator Stan Kutcher. In 2022, CIHR awarded 
Timothy Caulfield and Marianne Mader $1.5 Million for a 1-year project 
entitled “ScienceUpFirst” under program competition “Operating Grant: 
Science Up First.” The following year, 2023, they were awarded an 
additional $1.5 Million for a 1-year project under program competition 
“Science Up First: Together Against Misinformation.” In 2020, Timothy 
Caulfield was awarded $305,366 for a 2-year project titled: “Coronavirus 
Outbreak: Mapping and Countering Misinformation.”  
Provide all documents and communications in the awarding of all these 
funds addressing the following issues, from January 1, 2020 to February 
17, 2025:  
•Was there an open competition for each of these projects? 
•If so, how were these competitions announced and what was the timeline 
from the announcement to the awarding of the funds? 
•How many applications were received for each of these grants?  
•What was the criteria used to select the winner?  
•How did CIHR or other associated agency determine, or what 
considerations went into the determination of, the amount of funds 
needed for each project?  
•What were the deliverables and how did the agencies assess value for 
money?  
•What was the breakdown of costs and deliverables?  



 

 

•How were the deliverables used by the government? For example, did 
the project(s) identify potential sources of misinformation? If so, did the 
government act on, or does the government plan to act on, that 
information? What specific actions were taken, or plan to be taken, with 
the information?  
•How did the agencies evaluate the expertise of the applicants?  
•What was the process for evaluating potential conflicts of interest of the 
successful applicant?  
•Did CIHR consider there to be a possible conflict of interest in awarding 
such large sums of money to a newly established organization cofounded 
by a senator?  
•How was the determination made of what constitutes "misinformation" 
for these projects?  
•Was there a process in place for the public to provide feedback or 
participate in the exchange of information?” 
 
I am pleased to enclose the releasable documents relevant to your requests, 
which are disclosed under the authority of the Access to Information Act. You 
will note that certain records or portions thereof have been withheld under the 
following section of the Act: s. 19(1) – Personal information, s. 20(1)(b) – 
Financial, Commercial, Scientific or Technical Information, s. 21(1)(a) – 
Advice or recommendations, and s. 21(1)(b) – Consultations or deliberations. 
For ease of reference, a copy of the Act is available at Justice Laws Website.  
 
You are entitled to complain to the Office of the Information Commissioner of 
Canada about this letter and/or if you did not receive from us (within 30 days 
of making your request) either the response to your requests or a notice that 
we are extending the time we have to respond. You have 60 days to submit 
your complaint, starting from the day after you receive this letter or become 
aware that you have grounds to complain.  
 
Complaints can be submitted through the website of the Office of the 
Information Commissioner of Canada, or by mail, addressed to: 
 

The Information Commissioner of Canada 
30 Victoria Street, 7th Floor 
Gatineau, Quebec K1A 1H3 



 

 

 
Telephone: (613) 995-2410 (National Capital Region) 

1-800-267-0441 (Toll-free) 
 
You may obtain additional information on the complaint process by visiting 
the website of the Office of the Information Commissioner at www.oic-
ci.gc.ca. 
 
This completes our processing of your requests. If you have any questions 
concerning your requests, please contact us at ATIP-AIPRP@cihr-irsc.gc.ca.  
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
Sharon Robertson 
Manager, Access to Information and Privacy 




















































































































































































































































